
Woodbury County Board of Adjustment Agenda – Page 1 of 2 

WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, September 4, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Wednesday, September 4, 2024 at
6:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting 
will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting 
may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 729 498 353# during the meeting to 
listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with 
phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES: 8/5/24 

5 ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS 

» ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FOR A 
DATA PROCESSING BUSINESS ON PARCEL #884403400009.  SUMMARY: The consideration of 
a Conditional Use Permit application from AUR Correctionville LLC (Applicant) and property owners Ashley Acres Family 
Limited Partnership who have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application “to place a demand response load resource next to 
the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data 
processing business. The proposed site is on Parcel #884403400009 in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township) in Section 3 in the 
SE ¼ of the SE ¼.  The property is located around 6.2 miles southeast of Moville and around 7.7 miles southwest of 
Correctionville.  The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain.  
Owner(s)/Applicant(s): Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership, 3356 170th St., Correctionville, IA 51016 (Owners) and AUR 
Correctionville LLC, 15988 230th St., Grundy Center, IA 50638. 

» INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION CONTEMPLATING 
DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW ORDINANCE REGARDING 
CARBON PIPELINES.  SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on August 27, 
2024 voted to direct the Planning and Zoning Director to work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment, and Legal 
Counsel in order to make a recommendation contemplating decommissioning requirements as part of a new ordinance 
regarding carbon pipelines. 

1



Woodbury County Board of Adjustment Agenda – Page 2 of 2 

» INFORMATION ITEM: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONSIDERATION OF CHANGES TO 
THE COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (C-WECS) ORDINANCE #56. 
SUMMARY:  Following the Woodbury County Fair (2024), the Board of Supervisors (BoS) received a petition from 
the public to revisit the regulations contained within the C-WECS ordinance (Ordinance #56) on August 6, 2024.  
Subsequently, the Board of Supervisors directed county staff to review the ordinance and to make recommendations 
for changes. This discussion item will include information about the process ahead for the BoS’s review and 
consideration of potential changes.  The C-WECS ordinance is a stand-alone ordinance that was originally approved 
under the home rule provisions of Iowa Code and is not part of the Zoning Ordinance.   

» INFORMATION ITEM: PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE CONSIDERED 
FOR ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE. SUMMARY: The Woodbury 
County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the Zoning Commission to begin the 
process of exploring nuclear energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County.  This agenda item is an update 
about the process.   

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 STAFF UPDATE 

8 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

9 ADJOURN 

2



PACKET CONTENTS 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MINUTES FROM AUGUST 5, 2024 

ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 
FOR A DATA PROCESSING BUSINESS ON PARCEL #884403400009.   

INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION 
CONTEMPLATING DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW 
ORDINANCE REGARDING CARBON PIPELINES. 

INFORMATION ITEM: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONSIDERATION OF 
CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS 
(C-WECS) ORDINANCE #56. 

INFORMATION ITEM: PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE 
CONSIDERED FOR ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE.

3

4

10

103

104

107



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – August 5, 2024 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 5th of August 2024 at 6:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for 
public access via teleconference.   

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/board_of_adjustment/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SigpXD4Nkqs 

BA Members Present: Daniel Hair, Doyle Turner, Pam Clark, Tom Thiesen, Ashley Christensen 
County Staff Present:   Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Shelly McCoy Sadler, Bruce Sadler, Dan Bittinger, Jeremy Lane, Mr. 

Robertson, Gabriel Diaz Ellis, JoAnn Sadler, Brian Sadler, Tony Ashley, 
Aziah Ashley, Mary Wortman, Anthony Wortman 

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM.   

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Minutes 
The June 3, 2024 minutes were approved.  Motion by Clark to approve; Second by Thiesen. Motion passed 5-0. 

Action Item: Public Hearing – Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit Application: Data Processing 
Business on Parcel #884403400009.   
Hair opened the public hearing, and Priestley read the staff summary into the record. AUR Correctionville LLC 
(Applicant) and the property owners, Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership, filed a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) application to place a demand response load resource next to the substation in collaboration with the local 
electric utility, supporting grid resiliency for a proposed data processing business. Priestley clarified that the site 
would be used for Bitcoin mining. No written comments were received from stakeholders, but Priestley did receive a 
phone call from JoAnn Sadler, a landowner within the 500-foot notification area. A notification letter sent to Kendall 
Ashley was returned due to an incorrect address. 

The proposed site is located on Parcel #884403400009 in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township), approximately 6.2 
miles southeast of Moville and 7.7 miles southwest of Correctionville. The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance’s 
Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) does not reference data processing or the applicant’s specific request. 
However, under Section 3.03.3, data processing can be interpreted as a comparable utility or industrial use, similar 
to research and development laboratories, making it a conditional use in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning 
District. Based on the submitted information and zoning requirements, the proposal could meet the criteria for 
approval. 

On July 22, 2024, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of 
Adjustment, with the conditions that the applicants mitigate noise from the facility and provide adequate security 
measures, including fencing and lighting. Priestley recommended the same, emphasizing the importance of noise 
mitigation. 

Jeremy Lane from AUR presented a slideshow and stated that the Correctionville facility would resemble the one 
built on Calhoun Ave the previous year. Clark inquired about decommissioning, and Lane explained that the facility 
is not permanent, with an expected lifespan of 10 years, possibly longer with equipment upgrades. The land would 
be leased, and decommissioning would be managed with the landowner. The site was placed to allow farm 
equipment access and direct noise toward a northwest field, away from neighboring landowners. When Turner 

4



2

asked about noise mitigation, Lane mentioned they would likely use direct drive or hydro cooling fans to minimize 
noise, estimating levels between 60-70 decibels at 300 feet, similar to normal conversation. 

Clark asked Lane to explain the facility in simpler terms. Lane described it as a high-powered system that 
processes data to mine Bitcoin and other cryptocurrencies. The facility could reduce its energy load during peak 
demand, operating like a battery to support the electric grid. It would employ two full-time workers, earning 
approximately $27/hour with benefits, and generate about $12,000 in sales tax for the county. 

Hair moved to accept additional materials from Lane, seconded by Turner. The motion carried 5-0.  (See appendix).   
Hair then asked about the decision to switch cooling systems, and Lane confirmed they were opting for a closed-
loop system with lower maintenance and noise. When asked about internet service, Lane said they would use a 
local provider, with Starlink as a backup, and assured that the site wouldn’t interfere with surrounding landowners’ 
internet or TV connections. 

Turner inquired about the temperature of the exiting air, which Lane estimated to be between 120-140 degrees, 
depending on external conditions. When asked if trees would be used to reduce noise, Lane explained the plan 
involved using rock and fencing, without vegetation. Hair questioned why the term “Bitcoin” wasn't used more 
openly, and Lane suggested it tends to have negative associations. 

JoAnn Sadler voiced concerns about the project. She questioned the comparison of the facility to research and 
development, emphasizing that Bitcoin mining does not fit that definition. In response to Sadler’s concerns, 
Priestley acknowledged that Bitcoin mining is not specifically listed in the ordinance but explained that the Zoning 
Ordinance is not a comprehensive list of all possible land uses. He emphasized that Section 3.03.3 allows the 
evaluation of comparable uses when a proposed use is not explicitly mentioned. In this case, while the Bitcoin 
facility is not a utility, data processing involved in cryptocurrency mining is comparable to research and 
development laboratories in the sense of technological data analysis.  

Priestley stated that the interpretation is about technological research and development in terms of data analysis, in 
the sense of being, analyzed, and ultimately treated as a digital product, much like data research or collection. He 
compared the data "mining" process to mining for gold in the past, where an asset is sought, collected, as a 
valuable asset. He also pointed out that last year’s Calhoun site was similarly evaluated, drawing on these 
comparable aspects of data analysis.  Sadler indicated that comparing Bitcoin mining to research and development 
was a stretch and not a fair representation of what the facility does. She also does not think the previous site should 
have been approved.   

Turner, seeking more insight from Sadler, asked her to clarify her concerns about the site itself and the specifics of 
her objections.  Sadler raised concerns about transparency, noting that the number of servers planned for the site 
was unclear, and she referenced the noisy operations of a similar Bitcoin mining facility in Grundy Center. Sadler 
highlighted that the Grundy Center facility operates 1,900 servers and consumes 54 million kilowatts of energy 
annually, more than the entire county of Grundy, equivalent to powering 4,900 homes. She worried that the 
Correctionville site could similarly expand its energy consumption and noise levels, asking who would regulate 
future growth if the number of servers doubled or tripled. She also expressed concern over the lack of oversight, 
stating that while the Board of Adjustment sets the initial conditions, there is no "Board of Adjustment police" to 
monitor compliance or future changes, especially as board and staff members change over time. 

Tony Wortman from Stanton County also spoke, sharing his negative experience living near a data center with 
eight pods. He noted that, despite being a hydro-cooled system, noise still travels through trees and buildings, 
rattling homes. Wortman described the project as a "Ponzi scheme," stating that such sites often promise more jobs 
than they deliver and referenced complaints about noise and energy use. 

Tony Ashley, the landowner of the proposed site, expressed his support for the project, stating it would bring 
economic benefits to the county, including lower energy costs, job creation, and additional tax revenue. He assured 
that he was involved in the site’s planning and noise mitigation efforts and noted that, since he owns the land 
adjacent to the facility, he would be the first to notice any issues with noise. 

Hair moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Thiesen. The motion carried 5-0. Turner noted a key 
difference between this site and the Calhoun site is the lack of nearby neighbors at the Calhoun location. He 
requested more details on the plans and potential noise mitigation measures. Hair expressed concerns and stated 

5



3

that more information is needed before making a decision. Lane provided details on the noise levels, stating that 
the decibel readings are as follows: 72 at 1 meter, 69 at 3 meters, and 59 at both 15 and 45 meters—lower than 
normal conversation levels. He explained that the fans would be hydro-cooled, with three different vendors being 
considered to supply them. 

Thiesen asked Priestley if there had been any noise complaints at the Calhoun site, to which Priestley responded 
no. Turner noted that the closest home to the Calhoun site is 2,500 feet away. Brian Sadler mentioned that his 
house is 1,100 feet from the proposed site, with the property line being even closer. Priestley confirmed that, 
according to Beacon, the distance is approximately 1,100 to 1,200 feet. The closest home to the Calhoun site is 
2,300 feet away. Turner added that comparing different sites is challenging due to varying topographies, as seen 
with wind turbine research. 

Ashley properties are generally well-maintained, but Turner emphasized the need to inform neighboring landowners 
about noise mitigation efforts. Clark supported deferring the decision to gather more information and provide more 
assurances to the community. Lane explained that a similar project in Stanton County is four times larger and in a 
less suitable location. He reassured the Board that the proposed project will use hydro-cooling, point sound away 
from homes, and generate lower decibel levels. 

Clark raised concerns about potential future expansion, to which Lane responded that any expansion would require 
the utility company's involvement. Hair suggested that expansion could be included as a condition in the 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP). Priestley reminded the Board that they have 35 days to make a decision and work 
with the applicant to clarify details and establish a timeline. Hair asked about the process for selecting the site, but 
Lane said he wasn’t involved in that aspect. 

Clark then motioned to defer the decision until the next Board meeting to allow for more data collection and 
information gathering. Priestley noted that the next meeting falls on Labor Day, and the Board agreed to reschedule 
it for Wednesday, September 4th, at 6:00 p.m. in the Courthouse basement meeting room. Clark amended her 
motion to defer the decision on the CUP to allow for additional fact-finding and clarification, with a final decision to 
be made on September 4th. Turner seconded the motion. 

Lane requested specifics on what additional information should be gathered. Clark further amended her motion to 
direct Priestley to compile a list of items for investigation, such as noise levels and their impact on residents. 
Priestley outlined the needed information, including the system type and brand, structure, footprint, noise rating, 
and distance measurements. Lane asked if the decision could be delayed beyond 35 days, to which Priestley 
replied that CUPs are decided on a case-by-case basis, and distance and decibel levels would need to be 
specified. 

Clark made a final motion to defer the decision on the CUP until September 4th at 6:00 p.m., empowering staff to 
collect more information, including schematics of the system, structure details, noise mitigation measures, footprint, 
and projected noise levels. Christensen seconded the motion, which carried 5-0. 

Information Item:  Nuclear Energy Reiw of Zoning Regulations Direction to the Zoning Commission from 
the Board of Supervisors 
Priestley provided a summary. At their July 2, 2024 meeting, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors voted to 
instruct the Zoning Commission to explore the possibility of adding nuclear energy as an option for the county. This 
update outlines the Commission's upcoming tasks. Key considerations include whether nuclear power is suitable 
for Woodbury County, potential locations for a plant, and the type of facility. Local involvement in regulating a 
nuclear plant would be limited, as federal and state regulations would apply. The Board of Adjustment will not make 
decisions on this matter, but information will be shared with the Board and the public. Stakeholder feedback will be 
critical during the early informational stages. 
0Y3J5cHRvbWluaW5nLmNvbS8&ntb=1MAPhttps://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=
Information Item:  Home Occupation Signs Zoning Regulations, Summary 
The Zoning Commission has been asked if they would like to see policy change on regulations to the Home 
Occupation sign ordinance.  Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors have authority to start conversations 
about ordinance changes. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

6



4

Staff Update 
Priestley suggested listening to the Zoning Commission meetings and looking at agenda items. 

Board Member Comment or Inquiry 
None 

Motion To Adjourn
Hair motioned.  Second by Christensen.  Carried 5-0.  Meeting adjourned at 7:56 PM. 

7



5

APPENDIX 

8



6

9



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

REVISED REPORT – AUGUST 29, 2024
DEMAND RESPONSE LOAD RESOURCE – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): AUR Correctionville LLC / 

Ashley Acres Family 
Limited Partnership

Application Type: Conditional Use Permit
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation
Total Acres: 1.5
Current Use: Unspecified
Proposed Use: Operation of Data 

Processing Business
Pre-application 
Meeting:

June 28, 2024

Application Date: July 1, 2024
Legal Notice Date: July 20, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice 
Date:

July 18, 2024

Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

July 3, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

July 22, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

August 5, 2024 and 
September 4, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884403400009
Township/Range: T88N R44W (Wolf Creek)
Section: 3
Quarter: SE ¼ SE ¼ 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone X (Not in Floodplain)
Property 
Address:

No address

CONTENTS
Recommendation / Zoning Commission 
Minutes

Specific Description and Project Narrative

Zoning Ordinance Criteria for Board Approval

Application

Public Notification Information 

Supplemental Information

SUMMARY
AUR Correctionville LLC (the Applicant) and the property owners, Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership, have submitted a 
Conditional Use Permit application to establish a demand response load resource near a substation, in collaboration with the local 
electric utility, to enhance grid resiliency. The proposed site, located on Parcel #884403400009, is within the Agricultural Preservation 
(AP) Zoning District and outside the floodplain.  While the Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance does not specifically reference data processing or this type of request, it may be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 as a 
comparable utility use or similar to the industrial use of research and development laboratories, particularly in relation to data analysis. 
Therefore, data processing can be considered a conditional use under Section 3.03.3 within the AP Zoning District.  On August 5, 
2024, the Board of Adjustment deferred action on this application until September 4, 2024, to allow for further clarification of the 
relevant standards and considerations for a conditional use permit. Enclosed are the applicant's responses to additional questions from 
staff, along with an updated staff analysis for review.  Staff acknowledges progress in the application, but key details like noise 
mitigation and specific system information would need to be further expounded. Although noise impact assessments have improved, 
precise data on how the equipment will meet zoning standards remains unclear. The Board of Adjustment will need to consult the 
available information and further public testimony and potentially craft detailed conditions—such as noise limits, security, 
decommissioning, etc.—to determine if a conditional use permit is feasible at this location.
AERIAL MAP

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
At their regular meeting on July 22, 2024, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment 
with the condition that the applicants and property owner mitigate noise generated from the facility and provide adequate security for the facility 
including the use of fencing and lighting.  

10



2 

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

11



3 

ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – JULY 22, 2024

12



4 13



5 14



6 15



7 16



8 17



9 18



10 19



11 20



12 21



13 22



14 23



15 24



16 25



17 26



18 27



19 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DRAFT MINUTES – AUGUST 5, 2024

28



20 29



21 30



22 31



23 32



24 33



25 

QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION
On August 5, 2024, the Board of Adjustment determined more information is required for the conditional use 
permit request from AUR Correctionville LLC (Applicant) and property owners Ashley Acres Family Limited 
Partnership.  Following the first public hearing, the Board directed staff to collect further information in order to 
clarify the impact the project could have on area stakeholders as rooting in the conditional use criteria.  
Subsequently, staff and the applicants participated in a meeting via teleconference on August 8, 2024.   

The following section summarizes the proceedings on the meeting which included the presentation of questions 
for clarification engrained in the criteria of the Conditional Use Permit as referenced in Section 2.02.9 of the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. 

Summary of Meeting with AUR Correctionville, LLC 

Date & Time: August 8, 2024, at 1:16 PM 
Attendees: JohnPaul Baric, Jeremy Lane, April Aseniero 
Zoning Staff: Daniel Priestley, Dawn Norton 

Meeting Overview: 

1. Background:
The Board of Adjustment, in their August 5th meeting, authorized Priestley to further investigate the 
proposed data center. Priestley began by outlining the criteria required for a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP). He noted that the current process differs from the previous CUP process for the data processing 
site on Calhoun Avenue due to its proximity to residential areas. Thus, the Board reviews and decides on 
permits on a case-by-case basis. 

2. Questions for Clarification:
o CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning 

district within which the property is located and that any specific conditions or standards 
described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

o CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose 
and intent of this ordinance and the goals, objectives and standards of the general plan 
(Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

o CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse 
effect upon adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, 
utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general welfare 
(Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Please describe in detail the following: 

 Adjacent Property Impact:
 What specific measures will be taken to ensure that the data processing center 

does not have a substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent properties? 

 How will you address potential issues related to noise, vibrations, electromagnetic 
interference or other disturbances? 

34



26 

 Neighborhood Character:
 How will the data processing center align with the existing character and land use 

of the neighborhood? 

 Are there any architectural or aesthetic plans to ensure that the facility blends with 
the surrounding area? 

 What are the brand names, model numbers, and specifications of the proposed 
collective mining systems and servers that will be used?  
 What type of cooling systems will be used? (e.g. – air-cooled, water-

cooled)? 

 Provide a count of how many collective mining systems and servers will 
be located on the premises.  

 Have you conducted a certified “noise impact assessment” of the existing 
noise sources and comparison of the predicted noise level generated by the 
proposed equipment at the proposed location? Please provide a copy. 

 What are the expected noise levels (in decibels) and environmental 
impacts of these cooling systems? How will they be designed to minimize 
noise? 

 What are the expected noise levels (in decibels) generated by proposed collective 
mining equipment and cooling systems at the property line and at adjacent 
properties? (Please provide decibel levels at various distances including up to 
2,500 Feet – e.g. 100, 500, 1000, 1250, 2,500). 

 What specific noise mitigation measures will be implemented to minimize 
disruption to the neighborhood? (e.g. – soundproofing tiles, acoustic barriers, 
prefabricated noise dampening enclosures, noise insulation foam, trees, 
vegetation, etc.) 

 How often will these systems be upgraded or replaced? 

 What are the planned operational hours? 

 Will there be any restrictions on hours to minimize impact on the neighborhood? 

 Traffic Conditions:
 What is the projected increase in traffic volume due to the center’s operations? 

 How will you mitigate any negative impacts on local traffic conditions? 

 Parking: 
 How many parking spaces will be provided for employees and visitors? 

 Will the parking plan accommodate peak hours and avoid overflow into 
residential areas? 

35



27 

 Utility Facilities: 
 What is the estimated energy demand of the mining center? 

 How will the increased energy consumption impact local utility infrastructure? 

 Will there be a need for upgrades to local power, water, or sewer systems? 

 Who will be responsible for covering the costs of any necessary upgrades? 

 Will the facility use backup power generators, and if so, what are their 
specifications? 

 How will the noise and emissions for backup generators be controlled? 

 Other factors affecting the public health, safety and  
general welfare: 

 What environmental impact will the cooling systems have (e.g. – water usage, 
refrigerant leaks)? 

 How will the mining center address potential health impacts on nearby residents? 

 What safety measures will be implemented to prevent accidents or incidents? 

 How will the center ensure compliance with health and safety regulations? 

 What emergency response plans will be in place for potential incidents? 

 How will emergency services be notified and involved? 

 Is the proposed use or development, at the particular location necessary or 
desirable to provide a service or facility that is in the public interest or will 
contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community? 

 What benefits will the data processing center provide the local community (e.g. – 
jobs, local business partnerships)? 

 How will the facility contribute to the local economy? 

 Long-Considerations: 
 Are there plans for future expansion of the mining center? 

 How frequently will mining technology be upgraded? 

 How will upgrades affect noise, energy use, and overall impact? 

 Decommissioning: 
 What is the expected life-cycle of the site? 

 How will electronic waste and other by-products be managed? 

36



28 

 What recycling or disposal practices will be followed? 

 What plans are in place for decommissioning the facility if it ceases operations? 

 How will the site be restored to minimize long-term impact? (If this is being 
completed via lease with the landowner, please share a redacted copy of the 
agreement.) 

o CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and 
operated in such a manner that it will be compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will 
not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding property 
(Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

 How does the location align with the existing land use and zoning regulations? 

 What potential impacts on adjacent properties have been assessed during site 
selection? 

 How will the applicants and property owners address any negative effects on 
nearby land uses? 

 How far is the proposed site from residential areas, and how does this distance 
mitigate potential conflicts? 

 Are there any specific measures to protect residential areas from noise or other 
disturbances? 

 Will the building materials help with noise reduction and energy efficiency? 

 What landscaping features will be used in helping the mitigate the noise and 
visual impact? 

 How will exterior lighting be designed to avoid light pollution and glare affecting 
nearby properties? 

 What is the projected timeline for construction, and how will it be managed to 
minimize disruption? 

 Are there plans to conduct construction activities during off-peak hours to reduce 
noise and traffic impact? 

 How will construction traffic be managed to avoid affecting local traffic patterns? 

 What routes will be used for construction vehicles, and how will they be 
coordinated? 

 What are the specifications for noise and vibration levels of the mining 
equipment? 

 How will these levels be measured and controlled? 

37



29 

 What types of insulation will be used to minimize noise and energy loss? 

 How will insulation contribute to the overall compatibility of the facility with the 
neighborhood? 

 What are the design specifications for the cooling systems, and how will they be 
integrated into the building? 

 How will cooling systems be maintained to ensure efficiency and minimal 
impact? 

 What fire safety systems and protocols will be implemented? 

 How will the facility ensure that fire safety measures do not interfere with 
neighborhood safety? 

 What security measures will be in place to protect the facility and surrounding 
area? 

 How will security measures be designed to avoid negative impacts on the 
neighborhood? 

 Are there plans for future expansion of the facility, and how will this be managed?

 What measures will be in place to ensure that future expansion does not adversely 
affect the neighborhood? 

 How often will technology be upgraded, and how will these upgrades impact the 
facility’s operations? 

 What plans are in place to manage the impact of technology upgrades on the 
surrounding area? 

 How will the facility be maintained to ensure it remains compatible with the 
neighborhood over time? 

 What maintenance practices will be implemented to minimize long-term impact? 

 What are the plans for decommissioning the facility if it ceases operations? 

 How will the site be restored to ensure minimal impact on the neighborhood? 

o CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or 
development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

 Explain the steps you must take with the utility-company to place the system 
online? 

o CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects 
upon any significant natural, scenic or historic features of the subject property or adjacent 
properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

38



30 

 Will there be any grading on the site? If so, what is the footprint of the area to be 
graded? 

 Do you have permits from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) for 
grading (e.g. – NPDES #2).

 Do you have a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for runoff?

 What are your plans for vegetation, trees, shrubs on the site?

o OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is 
necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in the public interest or will 
contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

 What benefits will the data processing center provide the local community (e.g. – 
jobs, local business partnerships)? 

 How will the facility contribute to the local economy? 

o OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, 
 landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed 
use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

 Provide your plan to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed data 
processing business. Within your plan, indicated how noise pollution will be 
mitigated. 

o DEVELOPMENT / SITE PLAN / NOISE: 

 Please provide a development plan and revised site plan that includes mitigation 
measures as included with the above criteria/questions.  

 Provide a map drawn to scale, showing the subject property, all structures and 
other improvements, with the proposed conditional use identified per structure or 
improvement. Provide attachment. Provide a certified noise impact sound study as 
referenced above.

3. Next Steps:
o Priestley emphasized the need for specific and thorough responses to all questions, including 

details on the facility's impact on the area, building and equipment specifications, landscaping, 
noise mitigation, and how it integrates with the neighborhood. 

o While a current data center has been permitted, Priestley noted that it is difficult to make 
comparisons because the closest neighbors are over 2,000 feet away. 

o Baric mentioned that there have been no complaints about the existing facility. 
o Baric questioned the development of the CUP criteria and why detailed information about the 

type and number of servers and engineering is required. 
o Priestley clarified that such details are necessary for the building permit, but the BOA needs 

additional information on the facility's impact on the public. 
o Priestley explained that the questions for the CUP criteria were developed by staff 
o Since the application is generic, the Board had asked Priestley to request more specific 

information

39



31 

o Baric inquired about conducting a sound study before the facility is built. 
o Priestley stated that system specifications and a method for estimating decibel levels at various 

distances would be required. 
o Baric indicated he would provide more information on noise. 
o Baric asked for a definition of adjacent properties, and Priestley defined them as multiple 

abutting properties. 
o Priestley reiterated the need for specific information to address concerns about the project and 

suggested refining the questions for more detail. 
o Baric noted their commitment to using quieter hydro cooling fans, which produce approximately 

59 decibels at 50 feet. He asked which regulations to follow for noise readings, expressing 
concern about negative perceptions of data centers. He also mentioned that this facility would be 
unique to their company, as they do not have any similar projects. 

o They can only rely on the specifications provided by the manufacturer. 
o Priestley outlined three options for the CUP application: 1) Approve outright, 2) Approve with 

conditions, or 3) Approve with conditions to be met before startup. Conditions could include 
sound barriers, fencing, mitigation methods, a sound analysis study, and a decommissioning 
plan. 

o Baric mentioned that they currently operate five sites. 
o Priestley encouraged them to consider the broader impact and provide more specifics for clarity, 

such as noise mitigation and expert studies. These details will help address questions at the next 
Board meeting. 

o Baric asked how to integrate the facility into its surroundings, noting that it is near a substation 
where vegetation planting is restricted due to utility regulations. 

o Priestley suggested providing supporting documentation from the utility company and 
considering fencing as an alternative. He advised submitting additional comments one week 
before the meeting to include them in the meeting packet. 

o Baric noted that some confidential information should not be released to the public. Priestley 
indicated that such information could be redacted with explanations provided. Security 
information should also be explained if redacted or omitted. 

o Priestley indicated that he would provide Baric with a list of questions for further review. 

4. Meeting Adjourned: 2:26 PM 

Applicant Responses and Referenced Materials: 

On August 28, 2024, the applicant(s) offered their responses to the questions above with an opening statement 
about the data center.  The applicant(s) made references to work to substantiate their claims with various 
sources that are listed and linked to below.  The links are included here before the applicants’ responses to 
highlight the essentiality of consulting these sources as the responses are reviewed.  Additionally, the links may 
be accessed directly by either clicking on the or copying and pasting them into your internet browser’s address 
bar.   

Source 1:  
Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts of Data Centers in the United States 
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/63a4849eab1c756a1d3e97b1/t/65037be19e1dbf4493d54c6e/1694727
143662/

Summary.  This source provides an analysis of the impacts of data centers in the U.S., covering 
economic, environmental, and social aspects. It examines how data centers contribute to local 
economies, create jobs, and the environmental footprint associated with their operation, including energy 

40



32 

consumption and waste production. Social impacts include community effects and infrastructural 
demands. 

Source 2: 
Occupational Safety Health Administration: Occupational Noise Exposure 
https://www.osha.gov/laws-regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910/1910.95

Summary: This document outlines the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
regulations for managing noise exposure in the workplace. It specifies permissible noise levels, required 
hearing conservation programs, and measures employers must take to protect workers from hearing 
damage due to excessive noise.

Source 3: 
Center for Disease Control (CDC): National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) – 
About Occupational Hearing Loss 
https://www.cdc.gov/niosh/noise/about/index.html

Summary: This source provides information on occupational hearing loss, including causes, prevention, 
and the impact of noise on hearing. It offers guidelines for reducing noise exposure and protecting 
workers' hearing health.

Source 4: 
Use of Propylene Glycol in Data Processing Operations 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1TdLcbnYLvQcimi9Qq15WdgpU0WNuHB10/view

Summary: This document discusses the use of propylene glycol in data centers, particularly in cooling 
systems. It covers the safety, handling, and environmental impact of this substance. 

Source 5: 
Fate, effects and potential environmental risks of ethylene glycol: A review 
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/279958104_Fate_effects_and_potential_environmental_risks_of
_ethylene_glycol_A_review

Summary: This review article assesses the environmental risks associated with ethylene glycol, a 
substance sometimes used in cooling systems. It examines how ethylene glycol behaves in the 
environment, its effects on ecosystems, and potential risks.

Source 6: 
SOP Crisis Communication Plan 
https://miningstore.atlassian.net/wiki/external/MGQyMmM5NzEyMWNhNGUyYzljZjFjODcyZDQ3OD
Y0ZGM

Summary: This document outlines the Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for crisis communication. 
It details strategies and protocols for effectively communicating during a crisis to manage and mitigate 
its impact.

Source 7: 
Make America Mine Again: How Donald Trump's Plan for U.S. Bitcoin Dominance Could Trigger a New 
Digital Gold Rush 
https://www.coindesk.com/opinion/2024/08/02/make-america-mine-again-how-donald-trumps-plan-for-
us-bitcoin-dominance-could-trigger-a-new-digital-gold-rush/

41



33 

Summary: This article discusses former President Donald Trump's proposal to enhance U.S. dominance 
in Bitcoin mining and its potential to spur a new digital gold rush. It explores the economic and policy 
implications of such a plan.

Source 8: 
Shovel Co. Excavating and Land Management: Excavation Bid – Union Site 
https://docs.google.com/document/d/17WAGSqsGXIDuTgXsBPoOowk49hfnWej3/edit

Summary: This document is a bid proposal for excavation services at a union site. It includes details on 
the scope of work, costs, and terms for excavation and land management. 

Source 9: 
Commercial Lease with Ashley Acres Limited Partnership 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1U2dB7NPPbKXLdJ_0SuAyB5Oh5ptsQdl1/view

Summary: This lease agreement details the terms and conditions between a commercial tenant and 
Ashley Acres Limited Partnership. It includes lease duration, rental rates, and responsibilities of both 
parties.

Source 10: 
Giga Energy builds power and cooling infrastructure. 
https://www.gigaenergy.com/

Summary: This source details Giga Energy's efforts in building power and cooling infrastructure, likely 
focusing on data centers and their energy needs.

Source 11: 
Storm Water Management NPDES Storm Water General Permit No. 2  
Storm Water Discharge Associated with Construction Activities A Brief Guide To Developing Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plans And Best Management Practices: Summary Guidance, December 2022 
https://www.iowadnr.gov/Portals/idnr/uploads/water/npdes/GPs%201%20-
%203/Summary%20Guidance%20GP2%20(2022-12).pdf

Summary: This guide provides a summary of best practices and requirements for storm water 
management related to construction activities under NPDES General Permit No. 2. 

Source 12: 
Site Plan Link: 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1C5L3_vFCpvj06O-1FrvDwwnaBvWBz2oq/view

Summary: This link provides a site plan including layout and infrastructure details. 

Concern: The applicant will need to clarify which site plan is the correct site plan.  The linked site plan 
appears to be different than the one presented with the original application that is included in the packet.  
Questions remain as to whether the footprint of this site including the proposed structures meet the 
setbacks for  the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. 

42



34 43



35 44



36 45



37 46



38 47



39 48



40 49



41 50



42 51



43 52



44 53



45 54



46 55



47 56



48 57



49 58



50 59



51 60



52 61



53 62



54 63



55 64



56 65



57 66



58 67



59 68



60 69



61 

REDACTED LEASE AGREEMENT

70



62 71



63 72



64 73



65 74



66 75



67 76



68 77



69 78



70 79



71 80



72

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The applicant will need to clarify which site plan is the correct site plan.  The linked site plan that was provided with the response to the 
additional questions on August 28, 2024 ( https://drive.google.com/file/d/1C5L3_vFCpvj06O-1FrvDwwnaBvWBz2oq/view?pli=1 ) appears to be 
different than the one presented above and throughout this packet.  Questions remain as to whether the footprint of this site including the 
proposed structures meet the setbacks for the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.

81



73

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance does not reference data processing or this 
specific request by the applicant. However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance as a 
comparable utility or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories in the sense of business data analysis. 
Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a conditional use under section 3.03.3 in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This request can be construed to be compatible with the Economic Development Goals and Objectives of the Woodbury County 
Comprehensive Plan 2040 including “the encouragement of the diversification of Woodbury County’s economy…” (p. 53)

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

82



74

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Even though this location has separation distances from single-family dwellings, it will be essential for the applicants to minimize the 
amount of noise generated from the operations of this facility.  The location of this site could discourage future development, however the 
nearest dwelling is around 1,100 FT north from the site.  See full staff analysis below.

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Measures should be taken to reduce the amount of noise generated from the facility.  See full staff analysis below.

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This location was selected due to its proximity to Woodbury County REC’s electrical substation.  See full staff analysis below.

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

83



75 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

See full staff analysis below. 

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

Locating this business at this location could be construed as adding to the tax-base.   

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

See full staff analysis below. 

STAFF ANALYSIS – REVISED AND EXPANDED – AUGUST 29, 2024
As staff noted in the original packets, the applicants and property owners should provide for the mitigation of 
any noise generated by the facility that could adversely impact neighboring properties as well as have adequate 
security and lighting including the use of security fencing.  Thus, based on the information received and the 
requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal could meet the appropriate 
criteria for approval.   

Staff acknowledges that the information provided in this updated application has significantly increased since 
the previous meeting. The proposal now includes additional details that can be evaluated against the zoning 
ordinance’s criteria to determine if the site is suitable for a digital data processing (bitcoin) facility. During the 
August 5, 2024, Board of Adjustment meeting, there was insufficient information to assess compliance with the 
standards and other considerations of a conditional use permit. 

The new data helps the public understand the data processing or bitcoin facility better, but some issues remain 
unclear. Specifically, the measures to mitigate neighborhood impacts are not fully detailed. Many responses 
included phrases like "if necessary," suggesting a non-committal trial-and-error approach. Although there has 
been progress in addressing noise impacts, specific calculations for the noise generated by the system at the 
proposed site are still missing. For example, can the applicants confirm that their equipment will not exceed a 
particular rating such as 50 dBA at nearby residences and/or their property lines? 

The applicants referenced manufacturer data, but it’s unclear how this information translates to the noise levels 
from the specific system proposed in terms of the footprint on the site. Does the quantity of systems, number of 
servers, etc. ultimately impact the sound rating?  How do we know the data presented exactly matches the 
complete systems being proposed?  There’s a gap in understanding how each server or component contributes 
to the overall noise. The provided information remains generalized about the actual system’s footprint and 
contribution to the area dBA. Staff requests further explanation on these points for clarification. 

At this point, the information provided so far is a step forward but still lacks the detailed clarity expected from a 
comprehensive development plan. Details such as brand names, model numbers, and system specifications are 
needed. Without specific manufacturer data that considers the model, quantity, and site footprint, there is 
insufficient information to make a determination.  The Board of Adjustment could choose to approve a 
conditional use permit if the applicants meet all relevant standards and criteria. However, without specific 
conditions, it is unclear how placing a data processing (bitcoin) facility at the proposed location would impact 
the neighborhood. Public testimony from the applicants, neighbors, and other stakeholders will be crucial to 
determine if reasonable conditions can be applied to mitigate any potential issues. The following conditions are 

84



76 

offered as a guide to potentially address possible impacts.  This list may be adjusted as necessary: 

 Noise Limits: Equipment must not exceed 55 dBA during the day or 50 dBA at night at nearby 
residences, except during construction. Pre- and post-construction noise evaluations by certified 
professionals are required. 

 Noise Mitigation: Use soundproofing and other noise-reducing measures. 

 Zoning Compliance: The facility must comply with the bulk regulations for the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District. 

 Security: Install and maintain a secure fence with a gate with appropriate warning signage. 

 Road and Drainage: Adhere to Woodbury County’s road use and drainage agreements, including 
obtaining necessary permits and repairing any damage. 

 Decommissioning Plan: Submit an approved plan outlining the facility’s lifespan, decommissioning 
procedures, site restoration, and cost estimates. Provide financial surety of 125% of the estimated 
decommissioning costs. 

 Site Restoration: Remove all structures and equipment, decompact soil, and restore the site as 
specified. Agreements with landowners for leased properties may be necessary. 

 Financial Surety: Maintain and update decommissioning funds every five years. Ensure funds are 
sufficient and adjusted as needed. 

 Abandonment: Decommission the facility if abandoned, including notifying the Zoning Director and 
obtaining verification of decommissioning. Exceptions may apply under certain conditions. 

 Permit Applications: A new Conditional Use Permit is required for new or replacement equipment. 

 Emergency Response: Develop an Emergency Response Plan in coordination with local authorities. 

 Regulatory Compliance: Adhere to all relevant regulations and inform the County of any changes in 
facility operators. 

 Permit Expiry: The permit expires if construction does not commence within one year. 

85



77 

APPLICATION

86



78 87



79 88



80 89



81 90



82 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION

91



83 92



84

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 500 FT via Certified 
Abstractor’s Listing:

5 

Notification Letter Date: July 18, 2024; August 16, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: August 5, 2024; September 4, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 1

Written Inquiries: 1

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the 
meeting.

PROPERTY 
OWNER(S)

MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

Brian & Jo Ann 
Sadler Joint 
Revocable 
Living Trust 

3448 160th St. Correctionville IA 51016-8113 See written comments included below (8/23/24).

Phone inquiry from Jo Ann Sadler (7/25/24).Offered concerns about 
the notification process including the timeframe the letter was 
received before the Zoning Commission review. The Commissioners 
should factor in public comments as part of their recommendation.

Bruce B. &  
Shelly Dawn 
Sadler

3417 170th St. Correctionville IA 51016-8116 No comments 

Ashley Acres 
Family Limited 
Partnership

3356 170th St. Correctionville IA 51016-8115 No comments 

Northwest 
Iowa Power 
Cooperative

PO Box 240 Le Mars IA 51031 No comments 

Kendall & Lisa 
Ashley 

1665 Kossuth 
Ave. 
Letter mailed to 
PO Box 216, 
Moville, IA 
51039-0216

Correctionville IA 51016 No comments 

93



85 94



86 95



87 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
(IDNR):

No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(IDOT):

No comments.

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical 
Division):

I have reviewed the attached conditional use permit for MEC electric and we 
have, no conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 7/5/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas 
Division):

No comments. 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION 
SERVICES (NRCS):

No comments. 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE 
(NIPCO):

Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. 
– Jeff Zettel, 7/15/24.

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT:

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no issues with this proposed land use at this location.  The change 

would appear to be consistent with the location of the existing facility already 
in place. – Mark Nahra, 7/17/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 7/3/24.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE (REC):

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT:

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this application. – Neil 
Stockfleth, 7/3/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The Treasurer’s office has no comments. – Tina Bertrand, 7/5/24.

96



88 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

97



89 

ZONING MAP

98



90 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

99



91

ELEVATION MAP

100



92 

SOIL MAP(S)

101



93

SOIL REPORT(S)
Currently, no soil report is on file for this parcel on the Beacon Assessor’s site.  Based on the mapping, the property is 
composed of the following soils:

Excerpt from Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS)
Source: https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/WssProduct/m0xjoogycpt4nnmiixblsnsc/m0xjoogycpt4nnmiixblsnsc/20240702_11171611628_56_Iowa_Corn_Suitability_Rating_CSR2_IA.pdf

102



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:  _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

BACKGROUND:

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

ACTION REQUIRED:

Approve Resolution         Approve MotionApprove Ordinance

Other:  Informational  Attachments

103



INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEM ABOUT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 
CONSIDERATION OF CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY 
CONVERSION SYSTEMS (C-WECS) (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEM)  

Summary:

Following the Woodbury County Fair (2024), the Board of Supervisors (BoS) received a petition 
from the public to revisit the regulations contained within the C-WECS ordinance (Ordinance 
#56) on August 6, 2024.  Subsequently, the Board of Supervisors directed county staff to review 
the ordinance and to make recommendations for changes.  

This discussion item will include information about the process ahead for the BoS’s review and 
consideration of potential changes.  The C-WECS ordinance is a stand-alone ordinance that was 
originally approved under the home rule provisions of Iowa Code and is not part of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   

Background: 

On Wednesday, April 17, 2024, a townhall meeting hosted by the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors and the Lawton City Council members was held in Lawton, IA that covered a range 
of subjects including the regulations of commercial wind energy conversion systems (C-WECS) 
in unincorporated Woodbury County.  Several members of the public expressed concerns about 
safety, long-term agreements, and property values (Woodbury “Lawton,” 2024).   

Lawton Town Hall (Video) – Part 1 (April 17, 2024): 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=vYObe3e8hJk 

Lawton Town Hall (Video) – Part 2 (April 17, 2024): 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V-WPdTjx6S8 

Subsequently, a petition with over 160 signatures was received into the record on August 6, 
2024, asking the Board of Supervisors to revisit the regulations contained within Ordinance #56: 
An Ordinance Regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated 
Woodbury County and as amended via Ordinance #67 and Ordinance #72.  The petition states 
the following: 

We the people of Woodbury County demand the county’s commercial wind ordinance be 
relevant based on information readily available.  We believe new information makes our 
current ordinance no longer relevant and needs to be updated.  We, the undersigned 
would like to see, at a minimum, the following issues addressed: ½ mile or at least 4.5x 
tower height(TH) whichever is greater from a non-participating property line, 2.5x TH 
from a participating residence, 3 miles from a town, county park, and airports, 40 
decibels max for sound, complete removal of all concrete, metal, and wires for 
decommissioning, and mandatory bolstering of county roads and infrastructure prior to 
any construction. (Woodbury “Petition,” 2024) 

Petition Available for Download: 
https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/meeting_assets/citizens_concerns_2024-08-06_64181.pdf 

104



105



106



107



DISCUSSION AND PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE CONSIDERED FOR 
ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION 
ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the 
Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County.  
This information item is for a discussion on how to proceed with future work sessions and public hearings.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Initial Information about Nuclear 
The following is provided for initial informational purposes.  The goal is to examine both standard nuclear power plants and small 
modular reactors as potential energy opportunities in the unincorporated areas in Woodbury County.   

Nuclear Power Plant –  
- A nuclear power plant is a thermal power station that harnesses energy from nuclear fuel fission. Here’s how it works: the 

heat released during fission boils water, producing steam. This steam drives a turbine connected to a generator, ultimately 
producing electricity.  

Small Modular Reactors (SMR) – 
- Type of advanced nuclear reactor designed to be smaller in size and capacity compared to traditional nuclear reactors.
- Characteristics:

o Small Size.  SMRs have a power capacity of up to 30 MW per unit, which is about one-third of the capacity of 
conventional nuclear reactors.

o Modular Construction.  These reactors are designed to be factory-assembled and transported to the site for 
installation.  

o Flexibility.  SMRs can be deployed in single or multiple modules, making them suitable for a variety of application, 
including industrial use and remote areas with limited grid capacity.

o Safety. Many SMR designs incorporate passive safety features, which rely on natural physical processes rather than 
active controls to ensure safety.  

Articles Links: 
- Nuclear Power Plan Licensing Process 

o https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/fact-sheets/licensing-process-fs.html
- Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards 

o https://scp.nrc.gov/
- Governing Legislation 

o www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/governing-laws.html
- Fact Sheet: Biden-Harris Administration Announces New Steps to Bolster Domestic Nuclear Industry and Advance America’s Clean 

Energy Future 
o https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/29/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-

new-steps-to-bolster-domestic-nuclear-industry-and-advance-americas-clean-energy-future/
- Without a plant currently operating in Iowa, does nuclear energy have a future in the state?

o https://www.weareiowa.com/article/tech/science/climate-change/nuclear-energy-in-iowa-future-developments-midamerican/524-
aaed2ac4-7c3b-406a-a84b-c6e356b181ee

- Newly Signed Bill Will Boost Nuclear Reactor Deployment in the United States
o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/newly-signed-bill-will-boost-nuclear-reactor-deployment-united-

states#:~:text=President%20Biden%20signed%20the%20Fire,t%20seen%20since%20the%201970s. 
- What is a Nuclear Microreactor? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-nuclear-microreactor
- Micro-reactor Pilot Program 

o https://www.eielson.af.mil/microreactor/
- Project PELE Mobile Nuclear Reactor 

o https://www.cto.mil/pele_eis/
- NRC Dockets Construction Permit Application for TerraPower’s Natrium Reactor 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/nrc-dockets-construction-permit-application-terrapowers-natrium-reactor
- What is High-Assay Low-Enriched Uranium (HALEU)? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-high-assay-low-enriched-uranium-haleu
- 4 Crucial Steps the Biden-Harris Administration is Taking to Secure a Nuclear Fuel Supply Chain 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/4-crucial-steps-biden-harris-administration-taking-secure-nuclear-fuel-supply-chain
- New DOE and NRC Agreement Will Lead to Faster Deployment and Licensing of U.S. Nuclear Technologies 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/new-doe-and-nrc-agreement-will-lead-faster-deployment-and-licensing-us-nuclear
- What are Small Modular Reactors (SMRs)? 

o https://www.iaea.org/newscenter/news/what-are-small-modular-reactors-smrs
- Small modular reactors 

o https://www.iaea.org/topics/small-modular-reactors

108



Nuclear Energy Discussion 

Nuclear energy power plants including their establishment is primarily governed by the United 
States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC).  The NRC has a significant amount of control 
over the permitting and operation of such plants.  Companies who wish to get involved in 
nuclear must directly work with the NRC through the process of obtaining an “Early site permit 
(ESP).”  An example of this process can be found at the following NRC website: 
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/esp/north-anna.html

This website illustrates the process for the North Anna Site that was submitted by Dominion 
Nuclear North Anna, LLC.  It includes application information, a review schedule, a safety 
evaluation report, a final environmental impact statement, the North Anna Early Site Permit, and 
contacts.  There is also a “combined license process” which includes construction and operation 
approvals.  The applicants must provide detailed plans for the plant’s design, construction, and 
operation as well as safety measures.  It is the duty of the NRC to thoroughly review the 
submissions.  The following website includes a list of combined license applications for new 
reactors: https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/col.html

An example of a combined license can be found at this link for the North Anna, Unit 3 site: 
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/col/north-anna.html.  The application 
materials include: referenced documents; application information; review schedule; safety 
evaluations; early site permit; final supplemental environmental impact statement; combined 
licenses; related application information; and contacts. In the combined license process, the 
application is reviewed and includes a public participation process, safety and environmental 
reviews and compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).  The NRC also is 
involved in design certification, construction and operation, and post-license oversight.  

It appears at this time that the permitting process for nuclear power plants including modular is a 
multi-governmental complex process largely governed by the NRC.  The Iowa legislature 
appears to have considered two study bills (House Study Bill 555 and Senate Study Bill 3075) 
which would designate modular nuclear as an alternative energy production facility in Iowa.  For 
more information, there is a January 25, 2024 article written by Wally Taylor entitled “Iowa 
Utilities bill includes a good idea – and a lost cause” 
https://www.bleedingheartland.com/2024/01/25/iowa-utilities-board-bill-includes-a-good-idea-
and-a-lost-cause/

Role of the County 

Presently, under Section 3.03.3 of the Zoning Ordinance, nuclear energy generation could be 
administratively interpreted as a utility use that is eligible for conditional use permit 
consideration by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment in the General Industrial (GI) 
Zoning District.  However, as the same section reads “the table in subsection 3.03.4 may be 
updated pursuant to the procedure outlined in Section 2.03 from time to time to reflect legislative 
acceptance or rejection of the interpretations of the zoning director.” (p. 31). 

109



As nuclear and modular nuclear technological systems are evolving, Woodbury County is in a 
position to legislatively address the county’s nuclear policy for clarification.  At this time, in 
terms of county zoning the question is, do the citizens of Woodbury County view nuclear as a 
viable alternative energy option for the future?  If so, are there areas within the county that would 
be most appropriate for nuclear power generation?  Depending on the input from the public 
stakeholders and the industry, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance could potentially be 
updated to clearly clarify the permitting of future nuclear projects.   

Based on the regulations as presented by the NRC and the State of Iowa including the Iowa 
Utilities Board, the county could choose to add “Nuclear Energy Generation” as a land use in 
Section 3.03.4 (Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses…) under the “Utilities” category as 
either a “Conditional Use” or a “Principal Allowed Use” in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning 
District in the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.  Regardless of either a conditional use or a 
principal allowed use, the applicants must go through a rigorous permitting process through other 
levels of government.   

It is apparent that nuclear energy is significant, complex, and consequential.  As directed by the 
Board of Supervisors, the work of the Zoning Commission is to examine nuclear energy as an 
option for zoning.  Hence, a Zoning Commission public hearing process can be employed to seek 
public comments and consider potential recommendations including possibly legislatively 
adding “nuclear energy generation” formally as an option to the Zoning Ordinance’s land use 
summary table.   

Stakeholder Comments: 

On July 26, 2024, a letter was sent to over 120 Woodbury County stakeholders ranging from 
state, city, county and township officials, utilities, and other stakeholder organizations.  They 
were requested to offer their initial thoughts about nuclear energy.  As of August 22, 2024, a total 
of five (5) comments have been received for the record.  The letter is available on the subsequent 
page followed by the comments. 

110



111



112



113



114



115



116


	Insert from: "08-20-24 Regular Mtg Minutes.pdf"
	The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, August 20, 2024, at 3:30 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Nelson, Radig and Bittinger II; Taylor was absent.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human R...
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote.
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote.
	Carried 4-0, Taylor was absent.
	The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.
	1.  Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the agenda for August 20, 2024.  Carried 4-0.   Copy filed.
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent:
	2.  To approve minutes of the August 13, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed.
	3.  To approve the claims totaling $901,169.48.  Copy filed.
	4. To approve and authorize the chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale date for parcel #894729285006, 512-14 Market St.
	WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	RESOLUTION #13,789
	RESOLUTION APPROVING NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE
	WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	Copy filed.
	5. Receive the appointments of Connie Westphal and Ruth Growth as council members for the City of Athon. Copy filed.
	6. Receive amended Auditor’s Quarterly Report to replace the approved report on July 3. Copy filed.
	7a. To approve the appointment of Maria Mosqueda, Custodian, Building Services Department, effective 8-22-2024., Job Vacancy Posted 6/3/2024., Entry Level Salary: $17.29/hour.; the promotion of Emily Greer, Jail Sergeant, Sheriff’s Office, effective 8...
	7b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Human Resources, Senior Clerk, AFSCME Courthouse: $21.15/hour and Sheriff’s Office, Jail Sergeant, CWA: $36.76/hour.  Copy filed.
	Carried 4-0.
	8a. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the creation of Human Resources Temporary Secretary position. Carried 4-0. Copy filed.
	9. Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to approve the Secondary Road Driveway and Entrance Policy. Carried 4-0. Copy filed.
	The Board recessed for a meeting of the Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage Districts.
	The Supervisors meeting was called back to order.
	11a. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve to reallocate $173,291 of unspent American Rescue Plan Act funds to expense category 3.4 in accordance with plan rules.  Carried 4-0. Copy filed.
	11b. Supervisor Ung discussed Woodbury County’s July 12, 2024, motion to reconsider final decision and order with the Iowa Utilities Commission regarding Summit Carbon Solutions, LLC and their hazardous liquid pipeline permit including rights of emine...
	12. Reports on committee meetings were heard.
	13. There were no citizen concerns.
	14. Board concerns were heard.
	The Board adjourned the regular meeting until August 27, 2024.

	Insert from: "08-20-24 Bennett McDonald Levee  Wolf Creek Drainage Meeting.pdf"
	AUGUST 20, 2024 — MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AS TRUSTEES FOR THE BENNETT MCDONALD LEVEE & WOLF CREEK DRAINAGE DISTRICT IN WOODBURY COUNTY
	The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, August 20, 2024, as Trustees for Wolf Creek Drainage District in Woodbury County.  Board members present were Ung, Nelson, Radig, and Bittinger II; Taylor was absent.  Staff members present were Karen James, Bo...
	The Chair called to order the Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage District Trustee meeting.
	Information was presented By Caleb Rasmussen, ISG and Mark Nahra, Secondary Roads about flood damage, repair and response to Corps of Engineers. Copy filed.
	The Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage District Trustee meeting was adjourned.




